ASHLAND 2. TOWN HALL




In the Beginning

1829 Holderness voted to build a Town House at its
present location, the center of the Town’s road network.

As the village (now Ashland) grew, the villagers wanted
to move the Town House to the larger population center.

Between 1855 and 1867, there were 5 warrants for such
a change, 4 to physically move the Town House to the
village, and 1 to swap the Town House property for the
White Meetinghouse on Mechanic Street in the village.

All 5 articles failed -- part of the growing rift between the
villagers and the rest of the town that led to the
secession of Ashland from Holderness in 1868.

The boundaries of the new town of Ashland left the
Town House in the old town.




Now We Are Ashland

1869-1870 Ashland voters used Squam Lake Hall on the present
site of the Town Hall for their town meetings.

1871 March annual meeting voted to build a Town Hall at a cost
not to exceed $8,000 and a building committee was chosen.

April 5, 1871 Squam Lake Hall burnt to the ground.

April 11, the voters met at the site of Squam Lake Hall for what is
still the only outdoor town meeting in Ashland's history. Of
course it rained. No decisions made.

Special town meetings were held in May and June 10, when it
was voted to repeal the $8,000 appropriation, to dismiss the
building committee, to appropriate $4,000 for the Town Hall and
land, choose 3 new people as agents to build a Town house.

One more meeting on June 29, vote to build a Town Hall with
walls of brick and left it up to the committee to decide size.



Finally, Action

The second committee got to work. Land was
purchased for $500 from Jonathan F. and Susan
Keyes on July 25, 1871.

Work was underway by September. The builder
was carpenter John Jewell of Holderness who
also built neighboring St. Mark’s Church.

The committee chose 40 by 70 feet in size.

They were not however, able to keep within the
S4,000 budget.
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Town Hall, St. Mark’s Episcopal Church and Sherrill Hall.



Completion

e January 31, 1872, A special meeting was held in
the new Town Hall.

* The meeting then voted to pay the $2,509.42
above the appropriation. Total cost of the building,
stove, and furniture ended up at $6,999.06.

 The Town Hall consisted basically of two halls
stacked on top of each other. The lower hall was
two stories with anterooms topped by a balcony at
the street end, and a stage at the rear end. The
upper hall is still intact, with an arched ceiling,
occupying most of what is now the third floor.
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Highland Street, early 1900’s.




PUBLIC HALL ERA

Janitor of Town Hall, an “agent to take care of Town
Hall” had 25-26 men who held the post over about 80
years.

All town meetings and elections were held in Town Hall
from January 1872 to November 1950.

Over the years, hundreds of public events of all types
were held here.

There were other halls in Ashland, but in many ways,
the Town Hall was the entertainment, as well as the
political, center of the Town.

The following is a sampling of activity from Janitor’s
report for year ending 1913:



1 2
MARCH 1912
3 4 5 6 7 8 e scroor | 9
Republican Democratic PLAY “RED ACRE
Party Party FARM”
Caucus Cauncus FUNDRAISER FOR
PIANO
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
TOWN
MEETING
DAY
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
MOVIE
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
R HOSE CO. #2
AT ANNUAL
CONCERT &
BALL
31 Both the Catholics and Methodists used the Town Hall for their services before they
GLEE CLUB built their own churches.
1872-1909 Mount Prospect Lodge of Masons leased the upper story.




APRIL 1912

1 2 3 4 5 6
HIGH SCHOOL | HIGH SCHOOL MOVIE
7 8 - 10 11 12 13
8 GRADE BRISTOL
PLAY “SILAS HORSE SHOW
THE CHOIR
BOY”
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
PYTHIAN LECEEIEE BY PYTHIAN
MOVIE SISTERS BUDLEY TYNG SISTERS
REHEARSAL ON CHINA IN REHEARSAL
WARTIME.
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
PYTHIAN PYTHIAN PYTHIAN DANCE
SISTERS SISTERS SISTERS PLAY
REHEARSAL REHEARSAL | “RANDOM RUN”
28 29 30

The March 1913 meeting gave the Ashland Band free

use of the upper floor for their meetings.




MAY 1912

1 3 4
REPUBLICAN HOOK &
DELEGATION | LADDER CO. MOVIE
MEETING DANCE
LUINLIESS WORKERS METHODIST
ORCHESTRA Perform
AT LOWDALE? CHURCH FAIR
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
WRESTLING
MOVIE with
The RUSSIAN
LION
19 20 21 22 23 BAPTIST | 24 25
CHURCH
presents DANCE
Professional
Entertainers
26 27 28 29 30 31
DECORATION

DAY




JUNE 1912

2 3 4 5 6 7/ 8
FIREMEN’S FIREMEN’S
FAIR FAIR Ao
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
WH BAILEY WH BAILEY WH BAILEY IF BABBS
CO. CO. CO. LECTURE
VAUDEVILLE VAUDEVILLE VAUDEVILLE
SHOW SHOW SHOW
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
$T GRADE STEREOPTICON
LECTURE BY
MOVIE COMMENCEMENT REVEREND
DUDLEY TYNG ON
CHINA IN WARTIME.
23 24 25 26 Earnest | )7/ 28 unCLE | 29
WORKERS TOM’S CABIN BANCE
ST. MARK’S PRESENT
NORDLAND play, street
FAIR GIRLS parade and
CONCERT concert
30

Other activities throughout the years: Memorial Day, Flag Day, School graduations,
bear show, soldiers’ drills, waxworkers show, dog show, glassblowers, dancing
schools, medicine shows, herdsmen show, Halloween and Christmas tree parties.




JULY 1912

1 2 3 4 5 6
MINISTER’S INDEPENDENCE
SWEETHEART DAY
CELEBRATIONS
7 8 10 11 12 13
ST. MARK’S MILLIONARE’S
LOCAL WIFE’S CO.
TALENT performs
COMEDY/DRAMA
SHOW
14 15 16 17/ 18 19 20
MOVIE ROLLERSKATING
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
WRESTLING
with MOVIE DAL
CRACKER
JACK BUTLER
28 30
HOSE CO. #2
presents
MARION

WILSON




AUGUST 1912 | |© [
4 5 6 7 8 0 10
WHEELER
MOVIE & PERRY
11 12 13 14 15 16 1/
18 19 20 21 22 23 ZAQT e
e LK DANCE
25 26 27 28 29 30 31
GIRL ARTIST FATHER WHEELER &
CO. CASEY PERRY

Other organizations to use Town Hall: the Rebekahs, GAR and WRC Epworth League ldolita Club, T.O.U
Club, Knights of Pythias, Good Templars, Eastern Star, the Canados, Odd Fellows, Baseball Club, the
Socialists, the Ladies Club, Holy Name Club, American Legion, and the Woman'’s Club.




SEPTEMBER 1912

6 7
ST. MARK’S METHODIST
CHURCH CHURCH MOVIE
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
MOVIE PDANCE
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
SUNNY FIREMEN’S SQUAM SQUAM
SOUTH CONVENTION | GRANGE FAIR | GRANGE FAIR
COMPANY
29 30




OCTOBER 1912

4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

HIGH SCHOOL

BASKETBALL MOVIE

GAME
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
BAPTIST BAPTIST DANCE
MOVIE CHURCH FAIR | CHURCH FAIR
27 28 29 30 31 “TEXAS
CATTLE

KING”
Cowboy Band
& vaudeville




1 2
NOVEMBER 1912 |
PM)/ MOVIE
Caucusy
3 4 5 6 7 ST. AGNES 8 9
FIREMEN’S presents
DANCE “THE TEASER”
And dance
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
LIQUOR HIGH SCHOOL PLAY ROLLERSKATING
LICENSE BASKETBALL “THE
YOTING GAME WESTERN
DAY GIRL”
17 18 19 . enesr | 20 21 22 23
IROQUOIS ENTERTAINMENT WORfKERS HIGT)EisOOL
crrorm
INDIANS CLUB “p DIZY AT THE “HOW JIM IXIADE
COUNTY FAIR” GoODb
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
CRIMMINS FATHER
YMCA CLUB CASEY

Basketball was invented in 1891. Town Hall was described as late as the 1940s as the only basketball
court in town. With seven basketball practices and five games for the 1912-13 season, not all were
reported in the paper, but the town team beat Franklin and lost to Plymouth.




DECEMBER 1912

1 2 3 6 7/
PYTHIAN PYTHIAN
SISTERS SISTERS MOVIE
PLAY PLAY
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
HI HENRY
MINSTRELS ROLLERSKATING
15 16 17/ 18 19 20 21
HIGH SCHOOL | HIGH SCHOOL | HIGH SCHOOL
DANCE
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
CHRISTMAS
MOVIE
29 30 31 In later years, the Civil War groups, the Grand Army of the
WILSON’S Republic (GAR WRC) and Sons of Veterans, leased the
ORCHESTRA upper hall.

In 1917 on the eve of World War, Town Hall was used for

drilling purposes.
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ASHLAND GIRLS VS. PLYMOUTH

The open first floor was used for sports into the early 1950s.



Changes to the Building

1878: The ceiling was sheathed, the stage raised and the
walls frescoed.

1889: Building was wired for electricity.

1902: “Town water and suitable closets (toilets) with sewer
connection at a cost of about $170”.

1905: Fire escape on the rear of the building for an exit
from the Masonic Hall, for $193.88.

1920: L.W. Packard donated a bronze memorial for the
soldiers of World War | and had it mounted next to the
main entrance (where the little bulletin board is now).

1927: Two doors were added on the sides of the building to
provide more than one escape route in case of a fire.
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Other Structures: Jail

It was not really adequate as a jail. After a
dozen escapes, in 1912 for $225, two steel
lattice jail cells were installed in the building
It’s unclear when lockups stopped, and it
was later used at times as a dog pound, and
now mostly for storage.

March 1872 meeting voted to
instruct selectmen to build a “lobby”.
The cost was $582.08 and it was
often used for “tramps”. Statistics for
care of tramps show 60 in 1905, 187
in 1911, and 346 in 1932 at the
height of the Depression.




Bandstand and Scale
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March 1924 the selectmen purchased a wagon scale

and placed it on Main Street.

1929, the location was inconvenient, so it was moved

to the Town Hall yard.

1955, the town meeting voted to sell the scale as it
had not been used for a number of years.

March 1913 $100 to build a bandstand which
was erected in Town Hall yard that spring and
used for the first concert in June.

It was demolished in 1930, as it had become
too dilapidated.




Monuments
Civil War Soldiers” Monument

Erected with 1898 town
appropriation and money
raised by war veterans

for a total of $2,000 paid to
John Swenson of Concord.

Originally dedicated on
Memorial Day 1899 in the
Town Hall yard, it was moved to
its present location in 1900.




Revolutionary War Memorial

Dedicated for the Bicentennial
on July 4, 1977.
Today it is surrounded by a garden.

As of September 11, 2017, there is
also a memorial to Selectman Chair
Normand DeWolfe.



Town Hall or Legion?

1919: Town meeting warrant for WWI soldiers memorial.

1920: The two suggestions approved: to give the American Legion $300
for their present building; and to appropriate $4,500 to enlarge and
remodel the Town Hall as a more lasting memorial.

1921: S4,500 was not enough. Added $500 to the Town Hall fund.
1922: More money needed; committee appointed. On May 9, the town
meeting voted another $7,000 to fund and chose a building committee.
| Vote on assessing every voter an equal sum to raise the $7,000 was
deemed illegal, and the project
stopped in its tracks.

1923: Legion members more interested in using the money to
build or buy property than on enlarging Town Hall.

The voters agreed, work on the Town Hall rescinded and the
§5,000 in funds was given to the Legion post.

1924: The Legion post bought the old hotel on Monument
Square.




Town Hall or Gym?

In the late 1930s there was interest in both improving the Town Hall, and building a
gymnasium for the school.

The 1940s: Various committees formed to explore renovation and expansion options.
An annual capital reserve of $5,000 started to purchase land and build an assembly hall.
In 1946 a bond of $48,000 for a combined Town Hall and gym on the Town Hall site was
added and then the purpose of capital reserve changed from a land purchase to
renovating Town Hall for the dual purpose.

Meanwhile, the School district meeting voted money to purchase adjacent land.

A special May 1948 meeting made no appropriation but a building committee
continued and the purpose of the
reserve fund changed from
remodeling Town Hall back to
~ | building an assembly building near
v the high school.
In 1949 the capital reserve fund
| transferred to the school district,
. adding to a bond to build a $90,000
- assembly building. It was ready for
S9%E ts first use for the high school

. graduation in June 1950.




SCHOOL ERA

The new assembly building-gymnasium took over most of the functions of the
Town Hall building which became quite underused when fate gave it a new
role. On December 28, 1951, a fire of unknown origin totally destroyed the
school shop.

February 7, 1952, vote to deed the Town Hall to the school district.
The new first floor shop was ready for use in the fall of 1952.

Second floor renovations were completed in time for the 1953 school year.
A Music Room was on the third story.

The new classrooms however, were not perfect. After a 1964 NH Department
of Education’s evaluation of the safety and health of students, use of the third
floor was discontinued, and the second floor was only for home economics.

In 1965, a “partial evacuation” of the building made the school’s space
problems even worse.

1968-1970 addition to the Ober School included new industrial arts and home
economics classrooms, leaving the Town Hall empty again.
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The new second story had two classrooms,
the large Home Economics kitchen in the
rear, a smaller classroom in the middle, and
a corridor with two restrooms and storage
space in the front of the Town Hall.

Improving Home Environment
New Course of Study at Ashland
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Study Hall on the second story.
Photo courtesy of Frank Flanders
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LAND

ASH
TOWN OFFICE
MON-FRI 8am-4pm
@ POLICE DEPT.

Exterior changes during the school era would include the wooden portico at the main
entrance, a garage door in the south side to serve the shop and house the driver
education car, and new windows and a fire escape door in the rear wall for the large

Home Economics Room.



TOWN OFFICES

1970: School district meeting voted to transfer the Town Hall back to the Town, but reserved
the right for parking on the lot for all school purposes.

1970: Town meeting rejected accepting the Town Hall property.

1971: Town Hall accepted from the School District, without restrictions on the building’s use.
1972: Town budget included $4,000 to fix up the Town Hall for offices. The town offices
moved onto the second floor that September. The police station was also moved in to the rear
portion of the first floor.




1975: A fireproof vault for town records was built in the rear corner of the first floor.

1976: Landscaped area along the street front of the parking lot created with the
monument to the American Revolution soldiers.
Originally just grass with trees, it is now a garden with two benches.




1984: $30,000 of federal revenue sharing funds used for the Town Hall
renovation. Town Offices move to the first floor.

1985: Another $6500 from the Federal revenue sharing funds to
complete the work.

1992: The Electric Department office moved to Town Garage.

1993: The Water & Sewer office moved to Town Garage. The Police
Department was given more room, and Conference Room created.
1994: A storage area remodeled as a public room for tax maps access.

ot



1996: Construction of a new Police Department entrance.




Today’s welcome to
the Town Offices

NO DOGS
ALLOWED

ASSIS
FUEt SPPICE BEYOND.THIS

41 SCHOOL § AREA
EXCEPT SERVICE DOGS




Second Floor
Building Inspector’s Office (accessible only by stairs)




Third Floor

Used for storage







Town Hall Future

1983: The historical importance of the Town Hall was
recognized by the federal government when it was
placed on the National Register of Historic Places.

1993: Its image was used on the commemorative plate
and the buttons for the 125 anniversary.

There are issues facing the Town Hall that need to be
addressed -- energy efficiency, handicapped access,
space needs and layout, heating and cooling,
ventilation and air quality, deterioration of the historic

windows, soffits and masonry.

An LCHIP award for an historic structural report will
provide a comprehensive professional study for the
rehabilitation and a blueprint for the future use of the
Town Hall.



About New Hampshire’s Land and Community Heritage
Investment Program

The New Hampshire Land and Community Heritage Investment Program (LCHIP)

is an independent state authority that provides matching grants to New Hampshire
communities and non-profits to protect and preserve the state’s most important
natural, cultural and historic resources.

Its legislatively mandated mission is to ensure the perpetual contribution of these
resources to the economy, environment, and the quality of life in New Hampshire.
Since its inception in 2000, the program has provided 372 grants which have

helped to protect nearly 200 historic structures and sites and to conserve more than
278,000 acres of land for food production, water quality, ecological values, timber
management and recreation including hunting and fishing.

Grants have been awarded in all parts of the state and in 151 of New Hampshire’s
communities. $39 million of state money has leveraged more than $244 million in
funds from other sources.

LCHIP grants are supported by fees on four documents recorded at the Registry of
Deeds in every county of the state.

LCHIP receives about $6 from the sale of each conservation license plate (Moose
Plate), which provides about two-thirds of the Program's annual administrative costs.
The remainder of the administrative income comes from interest on the LCHIP Trust
Fund and other bank accounts, and an administrative fee assessed to each grant.



In Conclusion

 The Town Hall has provided service for 145
yvears to Ashland in its various roles.
It and the Ashland Old School are our most
historically important public buildings.

 We hope that the Town Hall will continue to
serve the community and still remind us of its
historic past if we take care of it.



